
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 
 

    
  
 
 
                      

                                                                               
   

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, April 30, 2013 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
              9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

 April 23, 2013 
 

   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
    
   Commissioners 

a. TRIDEC Designation of Associate Development Organization 
Human Services 
b. Agreement w/Kennewick Police Department to Provide Crisis Intervention Team Training 
c. Agreement w/Tri-County Partners Habitat for Humanity for Funding Assistance to Low-

Income Families 
d. Agreement w/Therapeutic Innovation & Recovery to Fund Homeless Drop In Center & Day 

Shelter   
e. Agreement w/Columbia Basin Veterans Coalition to Fund Rehabilitation Project 
f. Amended Agreement w/Lourdes Counseling Center for Services to Medial Care Recipients 
g. Agreement w/Domestic Violence Services of Benton & Franklin Counties  
h. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 566 
Juvenile 
i. Amended Contract w/State Dept of Social & Health Services for WSART Consultation    
Personnel 
j. May Employee of the Month Appointment    
Prosecuting Attorney 
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117 
Public Works 
l. Establishing the County Road Improvement District No. 21 Debt Service Fund, Fund No. 

0273-201 
m. Establishing the County Road Improvement District No. 21 Construction Fund, Fund No. 

0373-401 
n. Authorization to Proceed to Bid on the Reconstruction of Travis Road    
o. Authorization to Purchase Tires From Pasco Tire Factory 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mf
Text Box
Please click on highlighted area to view items in detail.

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
April 30, 2013 
Page 2 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

p. Authorization to Purchase Two Cast Brooms From Clyde West 
Sheriff 
q. Amended Agreement w/911 Supply LLC for Purchase of Uniforms   
r. Purchase Authorization from ProForce Marketing, Inc for Weapons & Electronic Devices  
s. Employee Recognition Award Policy Rescinding Resolution 2012-435 
 
Scheduled Business 
 
Regional Vegetable Production Update ~ M Ophardt   
 
Office of Public Defense 2012 Annual Report and Strategic Plan ~ E Hsu 
 

  Unscheduled Visitors 
   Board Assignment Update  
 
     

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, April 23, 2013, 9:00 a.m. 
Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
 
Present: Chairman Shon Small 
  Commissioner James Beaver  
  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; County Engineer Daniel Ford; 
Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Jacki Lahtinen, District Court; Erhiza 
Rivera and Nick Kooker, Treasurer’s Office; Teri Holmes, Central Services; Clerk Josie Delvin;  
Robert Heard, Central Services; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Bryan Perry, Safety Coordinator; Pat 
Austin, Superior Court; DPA Ryan Lukson.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of April 16, 2013 were approved.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items a-r, adding “s” 
(letters in support of Yakima Basin Integrated Plan).  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon 
vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Auditor 

a. Maintenance Agreement w/Comstor Information Management Inc. for Reader Printers 
Central Services 

b. Authorization to Proceed w/Bid Process for Purchase of Printer Cartridge Supplies 
Facilities 

c. Payment to IDAC West for Engineering Services to Repair OPTO22 Control System 
d. Contract w/Dynamic Sales and Service LLC for Purchase & Installation of Washer 

Extractor 
Human Services 

e. Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Ten Year 
Homeless Housing Plan    



 - 2 - 

Juvenile 
f. Contract w/The National Center for Juvenile Justice for Data Warehouse Project 

Activities     
Office of Public Defense 

g. Termination of District Court Public Defense Contract w/R Swinburnson  
h. Termination of District Court Public Defense Contract w/C Harkins 
i. Termination of District Court Public Defense Contract w/P Younesi 

Personnel 
j. Repealing & Superseding Previous Resolutions Regarding Benton County Noxious Weed 

Control Board  Map And Reestablishing Section Boundaries for Commissioner Selection  
k. Appointment of N Berg to the Noxious Weed Control Board; Area 2 
l. Appointment of M Sackschewsky to the Noxious Weed Control Board; Area 3  
m. Appointment of D Downs to the Noxious Weed Control Board; Area 4  
n. Appointment  of M Crowder to the Noxious Weed Control Board; Area 5 
o. Approval of Salary Step Placement for Chief Appraiser Job Classification 

Public Works 
p. Amending Resolution 2012-482 on Piert Road Extension Approving Reimbursement to 

Northwest Pipeline  
q. Bid Process Authorization for Purchase of Surfacing Materials  
r. Amended Final Assessment Roll for County Road Improvement District #15 

Commissioners 
s. Support Letters – Yakima Basin Integrated Plan 

 
Prosser Economic Development Association Quarterly Update  
 
Deb Heintz updated the Board on the following activities of PEDA: 
 

• New construction 
• Charter class leadership Prosser 
• Directional signs 
• Successful grant writing program 
• Housing needs – new committee 
• Clore Center – funding needs still there  
• Historic Downtown Prosser Association – received facade improvement grants; 

purchasing new furniture (more park benches, bike racks, garbage cans, ash cans) 
  

Trial Court Improvement Fund 
 
Pat Austin, Josie Delvin, and Jacki Lahtinen presented the proposed expenditures for 2013-2014. 
Ms. Austin said they currently had $300,000 and the request for expenditures was in the amount 
of $80,750.    
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the recommended expenditures for the 
Trial Court Improvement Fund as presented.   Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote the 
motion carried.   
 



 - 3 - 

Unscheduled Visitors 
 
Jim Wade, Kennewick said he visited the horse racing at the Fairgrounds and had concerns about 
the way the grandstands and bleachers were situated (for ingress and ingress) and that somebody 
might get hurt.  Mr. Sparks said they would review the issue and get back to him.   
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Beaver said he attended a Council of Governments and Tri-City Chamber 
meeting and talked to Adam about a workshop to update the Board on Hanford issues.  
 
Commissioner Delvin said he met with Lourdes Counseling Center (they were applying for a 
licensing change that might help with mental health issues).  He said he spent Wednesday and 
Thursday in Olympia attending WSAC Legislative Steering committee meetings; additionally, 
he met with the Director of Ecology regarding the groundwater issue. 
 
Chairman Small thanked everyone for their support while he was gone.   
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:40 a.m. 
 
Executive Session – Potential Litigation 
 
The Board went into executive session at 9:40 a.m. for up to 40 minutes with DPA Ryan Lukson 
to discuss potential litigation.  Also present were DPA Ryan Brown, David Sparks, Loretta 
Smith Kelty, Melina Wenner, Bryan Perry, Pat Austin, Cami McKenzie, and Mike Shuttleworth.  
The Board came out at 10:13 a.m.  No decisions were made in executive session.   
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 10:20 a.m. 
 
MOTION:  It was moved and seconded to authorize the PA to file a complaint on behalf of the 
County against Mr. Lawrence to recover funds owed to the County. Upon vote, the motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 04/19/2013 
Transfers # 01010413, 05010413, 0050204132, 050204134 
Transfers #: 050504132, 010804131-010804136 
Total all funds: $134,770.64 
 
Check Date:  04/19/2013 
Warrant #: 78680-78872 
Total all funds: $759,042.66 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 



 - 4 - 

Resolutions 
 
2013-312: Maintenance Agreement w/Comstor Information Management Inc. for Reader 

Printers 
2013-313: Authorization to Proceed w/Bid Process for Purchase of Printer Cartridge 

Supplies 
2013-314: Payment to IDAC West for Engineering Services to Repair OPTO22 Control 

System 
2013-315: Contract w/Dynamic Sales and Service LLC for Purchase & Installation of 

Washer Extractor 
2013-316: Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Ten 

Year Homeless Housing Plan    
2013-317: Contract w/The National Center for Juvenile Justice for Data Warehouse Project 

Activities     
2013-318: Termination of District Court Public Defense Contract w/R Swinburnson  
2013-319: Termination of District Court Public Defense Contract w/C Harkins 
2013-320: Termination of District Court Public Defense Contract w/P Younesi 
2013-321: Repealing & Superseding Previous Resolutions Regarding Benton County 

Noxious Weed Control Board Map And Reestablishing Section Boundaries for 
Commissioner Selection  

2013-322: Appointment of N Berg to the Noxious Weed Control Board; Area 2 
2013-323: Appointment of M Sackschewsky to the Noxious Weed Control Board; Area 3  
2013-324: Appointment of D Downs to the Noxious Weed Control Board; Area 4  
2013-325: Appointment of M Crowder to the Noxious Weed Control Board; Area 5 
2013-326: Approval of Salary Step Placement for Chief Appraiser Job Classification 
2013-327: Amending Resolution 2012-482 on Piert Road Extension Approving 

Reimbursement to Northwest Pipeline  
2013-328: Bid Process Authorization for Purchase of Surfacing Materials  
2013-329: Amended Final Assessment Roll for County Road Improvement District #15 
2013-330: Authorizing Expenditures – Trial Court Improvement Fund 2013-2014 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:20 
a.m. 
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 
 



mf
Text Box
a. TRIDEC Designation of Associate Development Organization







mf
Text Box
b. Agreement w/Kennewick Police Department to Provide Crisis Intervention Team Training







mf
Text Box
c. Agreement w/Tri-County Partners Habitat for Humanity for Funding Assistance to Low-Income Families







mf
Text Box
d. Agreement w/Therapeutic Innovation & Recovery to Fund Homeless Drop In Center & DayShelter







mf
Text Box
e. Agreement w/Columbia Basin Veterans Coalition to Fund Rehabilitation Project







mf
Text Box
f. Amended Agreement w/Lourdes Counseling Center for Services to Medial Care Recipients







mf
Text Box
g. Agreement w/Domestic Violence Services of Benton & Franklin Counties







mf
Text Box
h. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 566







mf
Text Box
i. Amended Contract w/State Dept of Social & Health Services for WSART Consultation







mf
Text Box
j. May Employee of the Month Appointment



mf
Text Box
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 117





 

 
cc: Commissioners, Treasurer, Auditor, Public Works  Prepared by: K Mercer 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: ESTABLISHING THE COUNTY ROAD 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 21 DEBT SERVICE FUND, FUND NO. 0273-201 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Commissioners approved certain improvements to Antinori Road CE 
1945 CRP and established County Road Improvement District No. 21 provided that payment for the 
improvements be made by special assessments upon the property in the district payable by the mode of 
“payment by bonds” and providing for the issuance and sale of County Road Improvement District 
warrants redeemable in cash or other short-term financing and County Road Improvement District bonds 
via Resolution 2012-066; and  
 
WHEREAS, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) allows that a separate fund be 
established for each county bond indebtedness; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County must account for those expenditures associated with the repayment of this bond 
indebtedness; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the County Road Improvement District No. 21 Debt Service Fund is hereby 
established to account for the repayment of interest and principle associated with the issuance of such 
bonds; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Benton County Treasurer is hereby authorized to establish said 
County Road Improvement District No. 21 Debt Service Fund to be identified as Fund No. 0273-201.  
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .         

Chairman of the Board  
 

       
Chairman Pro-Tem 

 
         

Member 
 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Commissioners of Benton County, 
Washington 

 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       
 Clerk of the Board       
 

mf
Text Box
l. Establishing the County Road Improvement District No. 21 Debt Service Fund, Fund No.0273-201



 
cc: Commissioners, Treasurer, Auditor, Public Works  Prepared by: K Mercer 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: ESTABLISHING THE COUNTY ROAD 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 21 CONSTRUCTION FUND, FUND NO. 0373-401 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Commissioners approved certain improvements to Antinori Road CE 
1945 CRP and established County Road Improvement District No. 21 provided that payment for the 
improvements be made by special assessments upon the property in the district payable by the mode of 
“payment by bonds” and providing for the issuance and sale of County Road Improvement District 
warrants redeemable in cash or other short-term financing and County Road Improvement District bonds 
via Resolution 2012-066; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish a construction fund from which expenditures can be made for  
construction costs associated with the improvements to Antinori Road CE 1945 CRP; NOW, 
THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the County Road Improvement District No. 21 Construction Fund is hereby 
established to account for construction costs associated with the improvements to Antinori Road CE 1945 
CRP; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Benton County Treasurer is hereby authorized to establish said 
County Road Improvement District No. 21 Construction Fund to be identified as Fund No. 0373-401.  
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .         

Chairman of the Board  
 

       
Chairman Pro-Tem 

 
         

Member 
 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Commissioners of Benton County, 
Washington 

 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       
 Clerk of the Board       
 

mf
Text Box
m. Establishing the County Road Improvement District No. 21 Construction Fund, Fund No.0373-401



mf
Text Box
n. Authorization to Proceed to Bid on the Reconstruction of Travis Road







mf
Text Box
o. Authorization to Purchase Tires From Pasco Tire Factory





mf
Text Box
p. Authorization to Purchase Two Cast Brooms From Clyde West



mf
Text Box
q. Amended Agreement w/911 Supply LLC for Purchase of Uniforms







mf
Text Box
r. Purchase Authorization from ProForce Marketing, Inc for Weapons & Electronic Devices











mf
Text Box
s. Employee Recognition Award Policy Rescinding Resolution 2012-435





2012 Annual Report – Benton County Office of Public Defense Page 1 of 14 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

As the Indigent Defense Coordinator for Benton and Franklin Counties, I am proud to present 
the 2012 Annual report for our Benton County operations.  This report recaps many of the 
highlights of our operations in 2012 including a year-end financial snapshot, and also 
summarizes our key achievements including achievements that fulfilled strategic goals set at 
the beginning of 2012.   
 
A Strategic Plan for 2013 is being published simultaneously to this report.  I encourage you to 
review that plan if you are interested in what this office plans to accomplish in 2013 and how 
these goals align with our stated Mission and Values. 
 
In 2012, we made great strides in advancing our Mission and Values, which are stated below, 
and we will continue to do the same in 2013. 
 
       Very truly yours, 
 
       Eric Hsu 
 
       Eric Hsu, Attorney at Law 
       Indigent Defense Coordinator  
 
 
 
 
 
MISSION STATEMENT  
The Mission of the Benton & Franklin Counties Office of Public Defense is to provide quality, 
cost-effective, legal representation to indigent and other qualified persons charged with 
criminal offenses, or otherwise facing incarceration or loss of liberty interest, so as to protect 
their Constitutional and other legal rights, educate them about the criminal justice system, and 
champion the interests of justice.  The Benton & Franklin Counties Office of Public Defense 
will always be mindful of the fact that the resources that enable it to advance its Mission are 
entrusted to it by the taxpayers of Benton & Franklin Counties, and as such it will constantly 
strive to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of its team, of system which it manages, and 
of systems of which it is a part of, so as to always be a good steward of such resources. 
 

Benton & Franklin    

 Counties 
 Office of Public Defense 

Annual Report 
Benton County 

Operations 

2
0

1
2

 

mf
Text Box
Office of Public Defense 2012 Annual Report and Strategic Plan ~ E Hsu



 

 

 

 

 

 

Thank you for your interest in the Benton & Franklin Counties Office of Public 

Defense (“BFOPD”).  BFOPD is charged with providing legally mandated public 

defense services to indigent persons facing criminal charges and certain civil cases, in 

the courts of Benton County. 

This Strategic Plan outlines how BFOPD intends to continue to advance its Mission 

and uphold its Values in the year 2013. 

Mission Statement 

The Mission of the Benton & Franklin Counties Office of Public Defense is to provide 

quality, cost-effective, legal representation to indigent and other qualified persons 

charged with criminal offenses, or otherwise facing incarceration or loss of liberty 

interest, so as to protect their Constitutional and other legal rights, educate them about 

the criminal justice system, and champion the interests of justice.  The Benton & 

Franklin Counties Office of Public Defense will always be mindful of the fact that the 

resources that enable it to advance its Mission are entrusted to it by the taxpayers of 

Benton & Franklin Counties, and as such it will constantly strive to improve the 

efficiency and effectiveness of its team, of system which it manages, and of systems of 

which it is a part of, so as to always be a good steward of such resources. 

VALUES 

In order to advance its Mission, all Benton & Franklin Counties Office of Public Defense 

staff and contractors share the following Values. 

 
A 

 
Teamwork 

We are constantly seeking out and developing inter-office and 
intra-office synergistic relationships through which to 
accomplish shared goals and create win-win outcomes. 

 
B 

Effectiveness & 
Efficiency 

We are always choice-driven and introspective so as to 
maximize effectiveness (do that which has the most effect on 
advancing the Mission) and efficiency (while consuming the 
least amount of resources) 

    

 Benton & Franklin 
 Counties 
 Office of Public Defense 
 

Strategic Plan 
Benton County 

Operations 

2
0

1
2

 



C Quality We take pride in quality work product in all aspects of what we 
do. 

 
D 

 
Cost-
Effectiveness 

We recognize the fiduciary duty we owe to the taxpayers who 
provide the resources by which we can advance our Mission 
and always strive to maximize cost-effectiveness without 
jeopardizing quality. 

 
E 

Compassion & 
Fairness 

We recognize that all members of the public with whom we 
interact and  for whom we provide services are fellow 
community members and citizens and we will treat them with 
respect, compassion, and fairness. 

 
F 

Effective Risk 
Management 

We will always be mindful of the liability related interests of 
Benton & Franklin Counties and constantly seek to minimize 
the exposure of the Counties to liability risk. 

 
 

G 

 
Continuous 
Improvement  

We recognize and embrace the dynamic nature of many 
factors that affect our ability to advance our Mission and as 
such, constantly seek out, and take action on, ways to 
improve every aspect of our operations.  We will never settle 
for “good enough” or accept that the “way it has always been 
done” is necessarily the best way to continue to do it. 

 

GOAL #1 – ENHANCE MISSION ACCOUNTABILITY of the Office of Public Defense 

by developing, implementing, tracking, and publishing a set of meaningful 

Performance Metrics. 

Summary: The mission of the Office of Public Defense can be broken down into two 

portions: a) the effectiveness portion, that states that services provided will be of high 

quality; and b) the efficiency portion, that states that resources that support the services 

will always be used judiciously.   

In an effort to always remain true to its mission, and to provide benchmarks against 

which mission accountability can be judged, OPD will develop and implement a set of 

useful and relevant Performance Metrics (“OPDPM”).  While OPD’s role in the criminal 

justice system is largely reactive and it does not have control over such variables as 

caseload volume, charging decisions and client wishes, OPDPM will be designed in 

such a way as to provide insight into trends that should drive management decisions 

and reflect on how new programs and modifications to existing programs affect mission 

advancement. 

 

 


	042313 Minutes
	Approval of Minutes
	Unscheduled Visitors
	Commissioner Assignment Update
	Vouchers


	Agenda 043013
	CA - Commissioners a
	CA - Human Services b
	CA - Human Services c
	CA - Human Services d
	CA - Human Services e
	CA - Human Services f
	CA - Human Services g
	CA - Human Services h
	CA - Juvenile i
	CA - Personnel j
	CA - Prosecuting Attorney k
	CA - Public Works l
	CA - Public Works m
	CA - Public Works n
	CA - Public Works o
	CA - Public Works p
	CA - Sheriff q
	CA - Sheriff r
	CA - Sheriff s
	Timed - OPD Annual Report 2012
	Timed - OPD Strategic Plan 2013
	Timed - WSU



